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PUNJAB LOGISTICS INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED 
 
VISION 
 
Our vision is to become a corporate leader in the logistics sector in State of Punjab by 
rendering best quality & most economic logistics solutions and other related services & 
facilities to the customers in the most professional manner. 
 
 
MISSION 
 
Our mission is to provide quality & reliable logistics solutions at cost effective prices thereby 
enabling us to deliver consistent value to our partners and also ensuring profitability and 
growth for Stakeholders. 
 
 
CORPORATE OBJECTIVES  
 
 To facilitate transportation of containers by rail/road from its terminals to other terminals 

on Indian Railways network. 
 

 To market services of CONCOR including bulk cargo movement in IR wagons with the aim 
of increasing rail coefficient thereby promoting environment friendly transportation of 
cargo from and to the state. 

 
 Carrying out of survey and development of rail connectivity to largest industrial parks in 

Punjab, provide and facilitate other services helping in improving the efficiency and 
productivity of logistics services rendered to the industry at large. 

 
 To set measurable performance goals to support the objectives and mission of the 

organisation and work as a professional, competent and dedicated team for the 
organisation to achieve excellence in all areas of business and operations. 

 
 To promote cold chain infrastructure in and around logistics parks with a view to improve 

the market of agricultural produce of the area. 
 
 To follow high standards of business ethics and be responsible to its social obligations. 
 
 To maintain absolute integrity, honesty, transparency and fair play in all its public 

dealings.  
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LETTER FROM CHAIRMAN 
 

Dear Fellow shareholders,  
 
My heartiest greetings to all of you. I am pleased to present before you the Annual Report of PLIL for 
FY 2023-24. This report presents PLIL’s performance and achievements during the year under 
review. Last year was indeed challenging for all global economies with slowing growth due to 
mounting inflation, volatile markets, continuing geo-political crisis, supply chain disruptions and 
policy tightening by the Central Banks. Despite these global headwinds, the Indian economy has 
managed to show resilience and has come out as one of the fastest growing economies of the 
World. As per National Statistical Office (NSO), the provisional estimates of the growth in real GDP of 
India during FY 2023-24 are 8.2%. Going forward, the healthy balance sheets of banks and 
corporates, supply chain normalization, business optimism and robust capital expenditure by 
Government are favourable indicators for the Indian economy. However, continuing uncertain global 
economic environment pose a risk to the international trade. RBI has estimated GDP growth of 7.2% 
for the year 2024-25. 
 
The logistics sector is one of the key elements in every economy as it supports trade and commerce. 
This sector is set to grow significantly in the coming years with rising production, consumption and 
new opportunities emerging for India on account of global disruptions. The Government's focus on 
infrastructure development, productivity linked incentives, digital connectivity and improving the 
ease of doing business will go a long way in contributing to achieve long term growth. As per 
Logistics Performance Index (LPI) of World Bank, India’s rank jumped 6 places to 38 out of 139 
countries, which is a strong indicator of country’s global positioning. 
 
PLIL has been able to sustain its growth momentum and has marked yet another strong year of 
performance. The productive TEUs handled during the year under review FY 2023-24 are 24621 TEUs 
as compared to 24596 TEUs handled during the previous FY 2022-23. PLIL has provided the stock 
yard for car parking business to Hyundai and Kia for providing their valuable services in the states of 
Punjab, Haryana and Himachal. 
 
Government’s vision is to develop a world-class logistics ecosystem that can support the country's 
growing trade and investment needs. Following this vision, in October, 2021 the Government 
launched PM Gati Shakti National Master Plan, which will be an enabler for having a coordinated 
approach, leveraging technology, for infrastructure planning and development. In this direction, the 
National Logistics Policy (NLP) will act as a guiding document for States/UTs in formulating their 
logistics policies. Government has also identified one hundred critical transport infrastructure 
projects for last mile and first mile connectivity, for ports, coal, steel, fertilizer and foodgrains, which 
will be taken up on priority. All these initiatives inter-alia will contribute to economic development 
of the country and will also boost business prospectus of the Company 
 
I express my sincere appreciation to my fellow Board members for their inputs and guidance.  
Further, I take this opportunity to thank all our stakeholders i.e., CONCOR & CONWARE, Value Chain 
partners, Customers, Regulators, etc., for their continued support. I would like to conclude by 
placing on record my appreciation for our employees, who have immensely contributed towards 
achieving the goals and objectives of the Company.  
 
I wish you and your family members all the best! 

    
 
 

Date: 29th July, 2024                   Sd/- 
Place: Ludhiana   Chairman 
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Punjab Logistics Infrastructure Limited 

 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 
To  
The Members  
PUNJAB LOGISTICS INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED 
 
Your directors are pleased to present their report on the business and operations of the 
Company together with the Audited Accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024. 
 

1. ABOUT THE COMPANY 
 

The Company, PUNJAB LOGISTICS INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED (PLIL) is a (51:49) % 
Joint Venture Company of Container Corporation of India Limited (CONCOR) & 
Punjab State Container and Warehousing Corporation Limited (CONWARE). The 
company has developed a Multi Modal Logistics Park in the state of Punjab 
facilitating trade and industry of the state and putting them on international map. 

 

2. CAPITAL STRUCTURE 
During the year under review PLIL the Authorized share capital of PLIL is 
250,00,00,000/- (Two Hundred Fifty Crore Only) comprising of 20,00,00,000 (Twenty 
Crore) Equity Shares of face value of INR (Indian Rupees) 10/-(Ten Only) each and 
5,00,00,000 (Five Crore) Preference Shares of face value of INR (Indian Rupees) 10/- 
(Ten Only) each.  
The paid up and subscribed capital of PLIL as at 31st March, 2024 is INR (Indian 
Rupees) 250,00,00,000 (Two Hundred Fifty Crores only) comprising of 20,00,00,000 
(Twenty Crore) Equity shares of face value of INR (Indian Rupees) 10/-(Ten Only) 
each and 5,00,00,000 (One Crore) 5% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of 
face value of INR (Indian Rupees) 10/- (Ten Only) each.  

 

3. FINANCIAL RESULTS 
PLIL concentrated on the development of the project during the financial year ended 
31st March, 2024. The financial results of PLIL are summarized below: 

 
        (Rupees in thousands)  

S.NO. PARTICULARS 
 

As on  
31st March, 2024 

As on  
31st March, 2023 

1. Revenue from operations  3,90,922 3,81,554 
2. Other Income  1,533 1 ,076 
3. Total Revenue (1+2) 3,92,455 3,82,630 
4. Terminal and Other Service 

Charges 
2,27,648 2,24,508 

5. Finance Cost 43,157 50,330 
6. Depreciation expense 89,093 88,285 
7. Other expenses 30,688 26,140 
8. Total Expenses (4 to7) 3,90,586 3,89,263 
9. Profit/(Loss) before 

exceptional items (3-8) 
1,869 (6,633) 

10. Exceptional items - 356 
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11. Tax expense  
a. Current Tax 
b. Deferred Tax 
c. Tax related to prior years 

 
- 

486 
- 

 
- 

2847 
- 

12. Profit/(loss) after tax  1,383 (9,124) 
13. Other Comprehensive 

Income (items that will not 
be reclassified to P/L 

(328) (311) 

14. Total Comprehensive 
Income for the period 
(13+14) 

1,055 (9,434) 

15 Earning per Equity Share 0.01 (0.05) 
 
 

4. OPERATIONS 
 

During the financial year 2023-24 PLIL achieved turnover of Rs. 3,90,922 thousand as 
compared to Rs. 3,81,554 thousand during the previous financial year 2022-23 which 
shows an increase of 2.46% in the revenue from the operations. The total 
expenditure increased by 0.34% from Rs. 3,89,263 thousand during the financial year 
2022-23 to Rs.  3,90,587 thousand during the financial year 2023-24.  
Profit before tax during the year under review i.e FY 2023-24 stood at Rs. 1,869 
thousand as compared to loss before tax for Rs. (6,633) thousand during the 
previous financial year 2022-23 which shows decrease in loss before tax by 128.17%. 
The profit after tax during the year under review i.e FY 2023-24 stood at Rs. 1,055 
thousand as compared to the loss after tax for Rs. (9,124) thousand during the 
previous FY 2022-23. 
The productive TEUs handled during the financial year under review i.e. FY 2023-24 
showed an increase of 00.10% in volume of business handled at PLIL/Ahmedgarh as 
compared to the previous financial year. The productive TEUs handled during the 
financial year under review in comparison with the previous financial year is tabled 
below:  
Handling of TEUs at the 
terminal 

2023-24 

 

2022-23 %age growth/ 
decline 

Inward 16912 18847 -10.26% 

Outward 

 

7709 5749 34.09% 

Total 24621 24596 00.10% 

 
Export has been commenced from PLIL & have achieved through put (loaded) of 244 
TEUs in the financial year 2023-2024.  
There is a steadiness to the PLILs income by handling car rakes. There were total of 
286 car rakes handled at the PLIL/Ahmedgarh during the financial year 2023-24 as 
compared to 287 car rakes handled during the previous financial year 2022-23.  
  

5. DIVIDEND 
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PLIL is in its development stage and for the first time PLIL has become profitable and 
PAT for the year 2023-24 is Rs.1,055 thousand. The Board has a view to announce 
the dividend from the coming years if the company remains profitable.    

 
6. PERSONNEL 

 
None of the employee of the company is in receipt of remuneration for whole/part 
of the year exceeding the limit prescribed under Companies Act 2013 read with the 
Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules 1975 amended by Companies 
(Particulars of Employees) Rules 2011. Thus, the information under this is nil. 

 
7. HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT 

 
PLIL is having a Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer appointed on 
contractual basis. Chief Executive Officer and 2 other employees have been deputed 
on secondment basis from parent Company, CONCOR. The secondment charges 
during the year under review are Rs. 10,925 thousand. There is no employee/ officer 
on the roll of PLIL till date. 

 
8. PARTICULARS RELATING TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY 

ABSORPTION FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 
 

Particulars relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign 
exchange earnings and outgo are annexed to the Directors report as Annexure-F. 

 
9. AUDITORS 

 
Being a Government Company, the Comptroller & Auditor General (C&AG) of India 
have appointed Statutory Auditors of PLIL for the financial year 2023-24. M/s 
Romesh K Aggarwal & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Ludhiana were appointed 
as Statutory Auditors of PLIL for the year 2023-24. The statutory auditors were 
appointed by C&AG vide its letter No. CA.V/COY/CENTRAL GOVERNMENT, PLIL 
(1)/1520, dated 22 September, 2023. The Statutory Auditors of the Company are 
being paid statutory audit fee of Rs.1,32,000/- (excluding taxes); tax audit fees of Rs. 
35000/- (excluding taxes) and quarterly limited review report fees (per quarter) for 
Rs. 9000/- (excluding taxes) for the financial year 2023-2024.  
 

 
10. AUDITORS’ REPORT  

The Statutory Auditors have audited the Annual Financial Statements of the PLIL for 
the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024.  
Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG) have decided to conduct Financial 
Attest audit of financial statements of PLIL for the year ended 31 March 2024 under 
Section 143(6)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 and communicated the same vide 
letter no./DGA/RC/Audit Intimation/11-04/2024-25/150 dated 13.06.2024. 
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11. SECRETARIAL AUDITORS 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 
made there under, Ms. Shivali Gupta of M/s Gupta Shivali & Associates, Ludhiana was 
appointed to conduct the secretarial audit of PLIL’s secretarial and related records for 
the year ended 31st March, 2024. The Secretarial Audit Report is enclosed as 
Annexure-D. 
The Secretarial Auditor has issued report and same forms integral part of Directors 
report. Further the secretarial auditors have given their report with un-modified 
opinion. 

 
12.  COST AUDIT       

Cost audit for the financial year 2023-24 is not applicable to PLIL as per notification 
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, hence no cost auditor was appointed for 
cost audit purposes. 

 
13. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS 

PLIL’s internal control systems were audited by M/s Akshey Garg & Associates, 
Chartered Accountants, Ludhiana for financial year ending 31 March, 2024. The 
Internal Auditor independently evaluates the adequacy of internal financial controls 
and reviews major transactions. The Internal Auditor reports directly to the Audit 
Committee to ensure complete independence and further ensures adequate internal 
financial control. 

 
14. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 

The CSR provisions under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable 
to the PLIL during the year under review.  
 

15. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Appointments and Cessations 
During the year under review Sh. Uday Deep Singh Sidhu, PCS who was appointed as a 
nominee Director on the Board of PLIL on 15 July, 2022 has been transferred from 
CONWARE and accordingly the nomination of Sh. Uday Deep Singh Sidhu as a 
nominee Director on the board of PLIL stands withdrawn vide letter no. HO/F-170 
(MF)/ 337 from CONWARE dated 20.07.2023.  
 
 

   Following are the Directors of the PLIL as on 31st March, 2024: 
 

1. Sh.  Mohammad Azhar Shams                          Nominee Director  
2. Smt. Kanwal Preet Brar, IAS    Nominee Director  
3. Ms. Ritu Narang      Nominee Director 

   
16. BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

A calendar of meetings is prepared and circulated in advance to the Directors and 
members. The intervening gap between the meetings was within the period 
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 
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Board Meetings   
The Board of Directors met four times for transacting the business of the PLIL during 
the financial year 2023-24 on the following dates: 

 
Board meeting 
Number  

Date  

45 15 May, 2023 
46 26 July, 2023 
47 26 October, 2023 
48 16 January, 2024 

 
 Audit Committee 

During the financial year 2023-24 the Audit Committee consists of two Directors and 
one nominee from CONWARE i.e. Sh. Amandeep Singh, Sh.  Mohammad Azhar 
Shams and Ms. Ritu Narang. Sh.  Mohammad Azhar Shams was the Chairperson of 
the audit committee. The Audit Committee members met four times for transacting 
the business of the PLIL during the financial year 2023-24 on the following dates: 
 
 

Committee meeting 
Number  

Date  

35 15 May, 2023 
36 26 July, 2023 
37 26 October, 2023 
38 16 January, 2024 

 
  

Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
During the financial year 2023-24 the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
consist of two Directors and one nominee from CONWARE i.e. Sh. Amandeep Singh, 
Sh.  Mohammad Azhar Shams and Ms. Ritu Narang.  
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met only 1 time during financial year 
2023-24 on the following dates.  

 
Committee meeting 
Number  

Date  

17 16 January, 2024 
 
 
 

17. RETIREMENT OF DIRECTORS BY ROTATION 
 

In terms of the provision of the Companies Act, 2013, Smt. Kanwal Preet Brar, IAS, 
Director is liable to retire by rotation and being eligible, offer herself for re-
appointment. 

 
18. KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
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Appointment and Cessations  
During the year under review Sh. Mayank Jain ceased to be Company Secretary of 
PLIL on 09th February, 2024. 
Key Managerial Personnel as on 31 March, 2024 are as under: 
Sh. Ravi Kant – Chief Executive Officer 
Sh. Hardeep Singh Juneja – Chief Financial Officer  
 

19.  APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
AMENDMENT IN COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT & QUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS) 
RULES, 2014 REGARDING APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR IN CERTAIN 
COMPANIES  
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide its notification dated 5th July, 2017 have 
exempted following companies from appointment of Independent Directors:  
(i) Joint Venture companies 
(ii) Wholly owned subsidiary companies 
(iii) A dormant company  

 
20. PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION UNDER SECTION 197 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 

2013 READ WITH RULE 5 OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION 
OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 
As per notification dated June 05, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 
Government Companies have been exempted for complying with the provisions of 
Section 197 of Companies Act, 2013 and corresponding rules of Chapter XIII. PLIL 
being a Government Company is not required to include the aforesaid information as 
a part of Directors Report.  
However, during the period under review the Company had no employee of the 
category falling under Rule 5(2) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.  

 

 
21. SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR 

TRIBUNALS  
No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals 
which impact the going concern status and Company’s operations in future. 
 

22. DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:                                                                                        
 
In order to prevent sexual harassment of women at work place a new act The Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013 has been notified on 9th December, 2013.  
PLIL is committed to provide a safe and conducive work environment to its employees 
during the year under review. Your directors state that during the year under review, 
there were no cases filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.  
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23. VIGILANCE 
Vigilance Awareness Week (VAW) was observed in the terminal by undertaking 
various activities during the period from 31th October to 06th November, 2023. The 
theme of the Vigilance Awareness Week -2023 was “Corruption free India for a 
developed Nation'. There is a proper Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) in place for 
the Commercial and Operations in PLIL. 
Information technology is being extensively utilised to ensure transparency in 
functioning of various modules such as e-office, e-billing, e-tendering, e-payments, e-
receipts, e-filing, e-auction & reverse auction etc. Thereby instilling confidence of 
being just and fair organisation amongst our customers, business associates and 
other stakeholders. 
 

24. PRESIDENTIAL DIRECTIVE(S) 
No Presidential Directives were received from the Government during the financial 
year 2023-24. 

 
25. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act 2013, your Directors confirm that: 
a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards 

have been followed with no material departures;  
b) They have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 

made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a 
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the 
financial year and of the profit/loss of the Company for the same period;  

c) They have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities;  

d)    They have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;  
e)   They have laid down internal financial controls in the Company that are adequate 

and are operating effectively; and 
  f)  They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all   

applicable laws and that these are adequate and are operating effectively. 
 

26. CODE OF CONDUCT 
 

PLIL has adopted Code of conduct for Board Members and Senior Management of the 
Company based on the Parent Companies guidelines as only nominee Directors are 
appointed on the Board of PLIL.  
 

27. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 
PLIL has identified possible risks and mitigation plans arising in key areas of the 
Company.  Implementation of risk mitigation/management measures are reviewed by 
the Audit Committee and Board periodically.  

 
28. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & GREEN INITIATIVE  

12



Punjab Logistics Infrastructure Limited 

 

Your Company believes in the principle that good Corporate Governance establishes 
a positive organizational culture and it is evident by responsibility, accountability, 
consistency, fairness and transparency towards its stakeholders. In accordance with 
DPE guidelines on Corporate Governance, a report on Corporate Governance forms 
part of this Report at Annexure-A.  
 
A Practicing Company Secretary has examined and certified your Company's 
compliance with respect to conditions enumerated in DPE guidelines on Corporate 
Governance. The certificate forms part of this Report at Annexure- B. 
 
As a responsible corporate citizen and to reduce carbon foot print, your Company 
has actively supported the implementation of 'Green Initiative'. Electronic delivery of 
notice of Annual General Meeting (AGM) and Annual Report along with other 
communications is being done to both the shareholders (CONCOR & CONWARE). 
Accordingly, unless otherwise desired by the shareholders, the Company sends all 
documents to the shareholders viz. Notice, Audited Financial Statements, Directors' 
and Auditors' Report, etc. in electronic form to their registered e-mail addresses. 

 
29. DEPOSITS 

The Company has not accepted any deposits from its members or general public as 
during financial year ended 31st March, 2024. 
 

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS  
As per notification dated 05th June, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 
first and second proviso to sub-section (1) of Section 188 under Chapter XII of 
Companies Act, 2013, are not applicable to a Government Company in respect of 
contracts or agreements entered into with any other Government Company. 
During the period ended 31st March, 2024, the Company’s related party transactions 
was with its holding Company CONCOR (a PSU under Ministry of Railways), the 
transactions are in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis. The 
same has been provided and accounted for in the audited balance sheet for the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2024 and can be referred at note no 32.  
However, the details of contracts or agreements or transactions with the related 
parties as required under Section 134(3) (h) of Companies Act, 2013 are attached in 
Form No. AOC 2, enclosed as Annexure E. 
     

31. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UDNER SECTION 
186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
There were no loans, guarantees or investments made by the company under 
section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review and hence the 
said provision is not applicable.  
 

32. LOANS TO RELATED PARTIES 
PLIL has not granted any loan whether secured or unsecured to/from companies, or 
other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of Companies 
Act, 2013. 

 

33.  CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY 
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During the year under review, there is no change in the nature of business of Punjab 
Logistics Infrastructure Limited.  

 

34.  DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURE/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 
PLIL is the Joint Venture of Container Corporation of India Limited (CONCOR) & 
Punjab State Container and Warehousing Corporation Limited (CONWARE). The Joint 
Venture shareholding proportion of CONCOR & CONWARE is (51:49) %.  

 
35.  MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT  

The detailed Management Discussion and Analysis forms a part of this report at 
Annexure- C. 

  
36. SHARES 

A) ISSUE AND ALLOTMENT  
The Company has issued and allotted 4,00,00,000 preference shares at Rs.10.00/- 
amounting to Rs.40.00 Crores to its JV partners CONCOR & CONWARE in the ratio of 
51:49 during the year under review.  
B). BUY BACK OF SECURITIES  
The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the year under review. 
C). SWEAT EQUITY 
The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review. 
D). BONUS SHARES 
No Bonus Shares were issued during the year under review. 
E). EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION PLAN 
PLIL has not provided any Stock Option scheme during the year under review. 

 
37.  ACKNOWLEDGEMENT  

Your Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation and acknowledge 
with gratitude the support and consideration extended by CONCOR, CONWARE, the 
banker and support staff and look forward for their continuous support and co-
operation. 
 

Date: 29 July 2024                                                  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Place: Ludhiana 

 
 

Director     Director 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
 
Punjab Logistics Infrastructure Limited (hereinafter referred to as “PLIL”) is (51:49) % Joint 
Venture Company of Container Corporation of India Ltd. (CONCOR) a Central Public Sector 
Undertaking of Ministry of Railways and Punjab State Container and Warehousing Corporation 
Limited (CONWARE) a wholly owned subsidiary of Punjab State Government which worked 
together for setting up a Multi Modal Logistic Park (MMLP) near Mandi Ahmedgarh. The MMLP 
provides integrated logistics services and is accessible by multiple transport modes. 
 
PLIL was incorporated on 16th December, 2013 with the Registrar of Companies, Chandigarh. 
As per the Articles of Association of Container Corporation of India Limited (CONCOR) and 
powers conferred in DPE guidelines on financial and operational autonomy for profit-making 
public-sector enterprises, the aforesaid Company was incorporated by the CONCOR in 
pursuance of Joint Venture Agreement (JVA) dated 13th March, 2013 entered between 
CONCOR and CONWARE. 
 
PLIL considers Corporate Governance an important tool for achieving sustainable long-term 
growth thereby enhancing stakeholder’s value. It aims to have sound Corporate Governance 
practices based upon transparency, fairness, conscience, team work, professionalism and 
accountability paving the way for following the best standards and building confidence among 
all the stakeholders which is necessary to achieve its objectives. Its objective is to adhere to the 
provisions of Guidelines on Corporate Governance issued by Department of Public Enterprises 
(DPE), Ministry of Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises, Government of India. A report on 
Corporate Governance is given below along with the Certificate from a Practicing Company 
Secretary regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance. 
  
CORPORATE PHILOSOPHY 
 
The philosophy is derived from CONCOR and CONWARE, the major stakeholder which has made 
applicable good Governance practices. From inception itself, it aims to conduct its activities in 
an ethical and responsible manner geared to sustainable value creation for stakeholders within 
the prevalent regulatory framework. PLIL intends to be a competitive, customer-friendly and 
development-oriented organization whose objective is to provide efficient and reliable 
multimodal logistics support for the country’s domestic and EXIM trade and commerce.  
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
The Board consists of Directors derived from the stakeholders of the company, viz., CONCOR 
and CONWARE. The Board of Directors endeavors provides long term vision, leadership and 
guidance and finalizes the long-term strategic plans for the company.  
 
The Company has a well laid down procedure for decision making by the Board. The Article No. 
20 defines the powers of the Board to decide on the matters categorized under “Reserved 
matters” and “Exceptionally reserved matters”. The meeting dates for Board meetings and its 
Committees are finalized in consultation with all Directors concerned in order to ensure full 
presence in the meeting. The Agenda is circulated to the Directors well in advance for the 
meetings of the Board and Committees thereof. Under circumstances where the approval of 
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the Board is required on urgent basis, resolutions are passed by circulation, which are later 
ratified in the next Board meeting. Whenever necessary, the departmental heads/senior 
management officials/experts are also called to provide additional inputs or give presentations 
on the matters being discussed in the meetings of the Board/ Committee of the Board. The 
Meetings of the Board of Directors are normally held at Registered Office of the Company. The 
Board has complete access to all the information available with the Company.  
 
Following are the Directors of the PLIL as on 31st March, 2024: 

 
1. Sh.  Mohammad Azhar Shams                          Nominee Director  
2. Smt. Kanwal Preet Brar, IAS    Nominee Director  
3. Ms. Ritu Narang      Nominee Director 

 
The Board of Directors met 4 (Four) times for transacting the business of the Company during 
the financial year 2023-24 on the following dates: 

 
Board meeting 
Number  

Date  

45 15 May, 2023 
46 26 July, 2023 
47 26 October, 2023 
48 16 January, 2024 

 
The Company has laid down a code of conduct for all Board members and Senior Management 
Personnel in accordance with the guidelines and policies evolved by the Central Government. 
 
The Composition of Directors, attendance at the Board Meetings during the year, the last 
Annual General Meeting, the number of other directorships is given below: 

Sr. 
No. 

Category of 
Directorship 

Name of the Director 
No. of Board 

Meeting 
Attended 

Attendance 
at last AGM 

No of other 
Committees 
Membership/ 
Chairmanship 

No of other 
Directorship 

1. 
Director, nominated 
by CONCOR 

Sh. Mohammad Azhar 
Shams  

Four Yes Two  Two Five 

2. 
Director, nominated 
by CONWARE Smt. Kanwal Preet Brar Four Yes Nil Nil One 

3. 
Director, nominated 
by CONCOR 

Ms Ritu Narang Four Yes Two NIl Three 

   
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide its notification dated 5th July, 2017 have exempted 
following companies from appointment of Independent Directors: 
 

(i) Joint Venture companies 
(ii) Wholly owned subsidiary companies 
(iii) A dormant company. 
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Thus in accordance with provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under as 
amended from time to time, PLIL being a Joint Venture of CONCOR and CONWARE is exempted 
from complying with the provisions of Section 177 of Companies Act, 2013 in respect of 
constitution of Audit Committee with requisite composition of Independent Directors and other 
matters prescribed there under. 
In accordance with DPE guidelines on Corporate Governance, the composition of Audit 
Committee during the FY 2023-24 was as under: 
 

a) Sh. Mohammad Azhar Shams   Chairman 
b) Ms. Ritu Narang    Member 
c) Sh. Amandeep Singh    Member (Nominated by CONWARE) 

 
The Audit Committee met 4 (Four) times for transacting business during the period: 
 

Committee meeting 
Number  

Date  

35 15 May, 2023 
36 26 July, 2023 
37 26 October, 2023 
38 16 January, 2024 

 
 
Attendance of Committee Members for the year under review is as under: 
 

S.No. Name of Member No of Audit Committee 
meeting attended 

1. Sh. Mohammad Azhar Shams Four 
2. Ms. Ritu Narang Four 
3. Sh. Amandeep Singh Four 

 
 
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in accordance with section 177 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the DPE guidelines, which inter alia, include reviewing the company's 
capital and civil projects, budget, business plans & annual / quarterly financial results before 
submission to the Board.  Further the Committee reviews the adequacy of internal audit 
function and internal control systems and discusses with internal auditors any significant 
findings and follows up thereon from time to time. The Committee attempts to ensure that 
decision making in the company is objective, and that there are adequate internal controls to 
ensure efficient realization of revenue, and due propriety of expenditure. 
 
NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 
During the year under review the Nomination & Remuneration Committee met one time during 
financial year 2023-24.   
 

Committee meeting 
Number  

Date  

17 16 January, 2024 
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The composition of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee during the FY 2023-24 was as 
under: 
 

a) Sh. Mohammad Azhar Shams   Member 
b) Sh. Amandeep Singh       Member 
c) Ms. Ritu Narang     Member 

 
KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
 
During the year under review Sh. Mayank Jain ceased to be Company Secretary of PLIL on 09th 
February, 2024. 
 
Key Managerial Personnel as on 31 March, 2024 are as under 
Sh. Ravi Kant – Chief Executive Officer 
Sh. Hardeep Singh Juneja – Chief Financial Officer            
 
GENERAL BODY MEETING 
 
 10th Annual General Meeting of the Company was convened on 12th September, 2023 at its 
Registered Office at S.C.O. 74-75, Sector 17-B, Chandigarh-160017. 
During the year 2023-24 One Extraordinary General Meeting was held on 26th October, 2023.  
 
DISCLOSURES 
 

i. Transactions with related parties as per requirements of Indian Accounting Standards 
(IND AS-24) ‘Related Party Disclosures’ Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India are disclosed in notes forming parts of accounts. 
 

ii. There were no instances of penalties/strictures imposed on the Company by the any 
statutory authority. 

 
iii. Compliance with the requirement of these guidelines is detailed in this report. 

 
iv. There is no employee/ officer on the roll of PLIL till date, PLIL is having a Company 

Secretary and Chief Financial Officer on contractual basis. Officers/ Employees from 
CONCOR are working on secondment basis. 

 
v. No expenditure has been debited in the books of accounts, which is not for the purpose 

of business. 
 

vi. The Company has not incurred any expense which is personal in nature and incurred for 
the Board of Directors and Top Management. 
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MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 
 
The website of the Company is www.plil.co.in. The official email id of the Company for 
correspondence is plil.punjab@gmail.com. 
 
GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 
 
Details of Annual General Meeting  
 

Date  : On or before 30th September, 2023 
Time  : 12:00 Noon 
Venue  : Registered office  

SCO 74-75, Bank Square, Sector 17-B, 
Chandigarh-160017 
Email id : pill.punjab@gmail.com 

 
Financial Calendar 
 

The unaudited financial results of Within 
45 days of 1st, 2nd and 3rd quarter 

: Approved at the Audit Committee 
and Board meeting held after 
close of quarter 

Approval and authentication of annual 
accounts by Board of Directors 
 

: Within 60 days of close of financial 
year 
 

Adoption of annual accounts by the 
shareholders 

: On or before 30th September 

 
Listing of Shares 
The Company is not listed at any Stock exchange.  
 
Shareholding pattern 
CONCOR and CONWARE hold shares in the company in the ratio of (51:49)%.  
 
Address for correspondence  
Punjab Logistics Infrastructure Limited 
Registered office: SCO 74-75, Bank Square, 
Sector 17-B, Chandigarh-160017 
Email Id: pill.punjab@gmail.com 
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R K & ASSOCIATES 
       (Company Secretaries)

Flat‐6A, Khasra No. 117/1/2, LGF
Rajpur Khurd Extension Colony, 

Gali No.‐1, Near Ramchander Market,
New Delhi‐110068.

Mob.‐ 9999301705, 98712 20081,

Email: csrakeshkumar@gmail.com
cs.rkassociates@gmail.com

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATE 

To the members of 
PUNJAB LOGISTICS INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED 
(CIN- U63010CH2013GOI034873) 
SCO 74-75, Sector-17 B 
Chandigarh-160017 (Punjab) 

I have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Punjab Logistics 
Infrastructure Limited having CIN U63010CH2013GOI034873 for the period ended 31st 
March 2024 as stipulated in the DPE guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public 
Sector Enterprises issued by the “Department of Public Enterprises”, Ministry of Heavy 
Industries and Public Enterprises, Govt. of India. 

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the 
Management. My examination carried out is in accordance with the Corporate Governance 
(Model of Best Practices) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, was 
limited to the procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the Company for ensuring 
the Compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an 
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the company. 

I have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of my knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of certification and have been provided with such 
records, documents, certification, etc. as had been required by me. 

In my opinion and to the best of my knowledge and information and according to the 
explanation given to me, I certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of the 
Corporate Governance issued by the “Department of Public Enterprises” Ministry of Heavy 
Industries and Public Enterprises, Govt. of India. 

I further state such compliance is neither an assurance as to further viability of the company 
nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of 
the Company. 

For R K & Associates 
(Company Secretaries)

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 04/07/2024 
UDIN: F007695F000663856 

CS Rakesh Kumar 
M.No.-FCS 7695 
C.O.P. No.-8553 

RAKESH 
KUMAR

Digitally signed by RAKESH KUMAR 
DN: c=IN, o=PERSONAL, title=3689, 
pseudonym=0c0b7a014b3f4d90a1b6b8e1ae2d23bf, 
2.5.4.20=65504a2c0ea58c5a9f2cd3f4f9e6d5be4c8291ee8bf27
3ea1a86abd9b54b8fe6, postalCode=110068, st=Delhi, 
serialNumber=6ca7814ef689420f8fc45ee61e8583ec93eb2370
d62f96e175820b5e7dee9ef9, cn=RAKESH KUMAR 
Date: 2024.07.04 09:55:35 +05'30'
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
1.  INDUSTRY STRUCTURE & DEVELOPMENT 
 

Industries such as Auto, FMCG, food processing, consumer durables, Paper & Pulp 
sector have considerable requirements for integrated logistics parks owing to their 
higher need for warehousing and transportation activity. Therefore, with the 
mushrooming of industries in the state of Punjab, the Multi Modal Logistics Park 
(MMLP) is being set up for providing single window services and seamless connectivity 
for promoting hinterland transportation of containers as well as break bulk cargo. This 
will enable freight traffic to switch from the road to the rail network. By linking the 
freight traffic to the rail network, the cost of transportation will be reduced for the 
industries in Punjab. 

 
2. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS 
 

PLIL, in order to ensure that all checks and balances are in place and all internal control 
systems are in order, M/s Akshey Garg & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Ludhiana 
were appointed as Internal Auditors of the Company for the financial year ended 31st 
March, 2024 which empathized to do regular and exhaustive internal control check in 
close co-ordination with deputed officials. Reports of the auditors are reviewed and 
compliances are ensured and the reports along with the compliances are put up to Audit 
committee periodically. 

 
3. SECURED AND UNSECURED LOANS 
 

As on 31st March, 2024, the outstanding balance of secured loan has been Rs. 20,073 
thousand and unsecured loans has been Rs. 4,97,201 thousand.   
 

4.  CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS 
 

PLIL has already completed its construction phase. Computer systems for Customs and 
EXIM is capitalized during the financial year under review i.e. FY 2023-24.  As on 31st 
March, 2024, the closing balance of capital work in progress amounted to Rs. 1,768 
thousand.  
 

5. FIXED ASSETS 
         Amount in INR thousands 

Particulars   FY ended 31st 
March, 2024 

FY ended 31st 
March, 2023 

Noncurrent assets   19,32,132 20,15,108 
 

 Depreciation charged during the year is Rs. 89,093 thousand 
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6. INVENTORIES 
 

The company being a service company does not have stock in trade. Moreover, the 
company is under development stage.  
 

7. INCOME 
  

During the financial year 2023-24 PLIL achieved turnover of Rs. 3,90,922 thousand as 
compared to Rs. 3,81,554 thousand during the previous financial year 2022-23 which 
shows an increase of 2.46% in the revenue from the operations.  
The productive TEUs handled during the financial year under review i.e. FY 2023-24 
showed an increase of 00.10% in volume of business handled at PLIL/Ahmedgarh as 
compared to the previous financial year. The productive TEUs handled during the 
financial year under review in comparison with the previous financial year is tabled 
below:  
  

Handling of TEUs at the 
terminal 

2023-24 

 

2022-23 %age growth/ 
decline 

Inward 16912 18847 -10.26% 

Outward 

 

7709 5749 34.09% 

Total 24621 24596 00.10% 

 
The income from other sources mainly consists of interest income being the interest on 
fixed deposits and on the income tax refund received during the year under review. The 
income from other sources during the financial year 2023-24 had been Rs. 1533 
thousand as compared to 1076 thousand during the previous year 2022-23. 

 
8. EXPENSES 
 

During the financial year under review 2023-24, the operational and other expenses are 
Rs. 3,90,587 thousand as compared to Rs. 3,89,263 thousand for previous financial year 
2022-23. Out of which during the year under review 2023-24 the expenses primarily 
enhanced due to terminal and other service charges which are Rs. 2,27,648 thousand 
and debt serviced amounting Rs. 43,157 thousand. 

 
9. EMPLOYEE REMUNERATION 
 

The Company has a Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer appointed on short 
term contract basis. CEO and Deputy Manager (C&O) and 2 other employees have been 
deputed on secondment basis from CONCOR. During the financial year 2023-24 the 
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remuneration paid to the secondment staff amounts Rs. 10,925 thousand in comparison 
the secondment staff charges for Rs. 10,769 thousand for the previous year financial 
year 2022-23. The contractual staff charges for 2023-24 was Rs. 1495 thousand as 
compared to previous year 2022-23 was 1371 thousand. 
 

10. TAXATION 
 

For the financial year ended 31st March, 2024 deferred tax liability amounting to Rs. 486 
thousand was created as compared to deferred tax asset of Rs. 2847 thousand for the 
previous financial year. 
  

11.  SWOT ANALYSIS 
 

STRENGTHS 
 
 Connectivity to the proposed Dedicated Freight Corridor (DFC) project – linked 

through feeder route to western freight corridor and part of eastern freight 
corridor 

 Ludhiana is one of the key industrial areas in Punjab contributing to 
approximately 34.7% of Punjab’s GDP (in FY10) 

 Located off the NH-1, thereby, providing easy connectivity to road 
 

WEAKNESSES 
 

 Existing ICDs of CONCOR and GRFL lies on the eastern side of NH-1. However, the 
proposed MMLP will be on the western side of NH-1 which is about 20 
kilometers off the highway as well as from GRFL ICD. (This can be countered by 
providing customers with better services at reasonable costs using CONCOR‟s 
strength)  

 
OPPORTUNITIES 

 
 The state’s Industrial Policy 2003 aims at infrastructure development, lesser 

number of regulations and speedy clearance of new projects which has made 
Punjab amongst the leading investment destination 

 Ludhiana, the location for the proposed MMLP, is ranked first in India in terms of 
doing business 

 Some key products of Punjab – Bicycle, fasteners, and sewing machines is given 
special focus status 

 Double stacking  
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THREATS  
 
Dedicated Freight Corridor Corporation (DFCC) and few competitors are planning to set 
up a multi-modal logistic park in Ludhiana (This should be overcome by harnessing the 
first-mover advantage by the Quila Raipur facility)  

  
12. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 
 

Statements in the Directors’ Report and Management Discussion & Analysis, describing 
the Company’s objectives, projections and estimates, expectations, predictions etc. may 
be “forward looking statements” within the meaning of the applicable laws and 
regulations. Forward looking statements contained herein are subject to certain risks 
and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those 
reflected in the forward-looking statements. Actual results, performances or 
achievements may vary materially from those expressed or implied due to economic 
conditions, Government policies and other incidental factors such as litigation and 
industrial relation.  
 
 

            Date: 29 July, 2024                                               For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
            Place: Ludhiana     

                 Director        Director 
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GUPTA SHIVALI & ASSOCIATES 

COMPANY SECRETARIES 
Office: 687 Prem Nagar Brindaban Road,  

Civil lines, Ludhiana-141001 
Contact at: +91-94170-00737,  

Email-cs.shivaligupta707@gmail.com 
 

 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
 

For The Financial Year Ended 31st March, 2024 
{Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 

of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014} 
  

To, 

The Members, 

Punjab Logistics Infrastructure Limited 

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the Compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 

good corporate practices by Punjab Logistics Infrastructure Limited (hereinafter called the Company). 

Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 

conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the Punjab Logistics Infrastructure Limited books, papers, minute books, forms and 

returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, 

its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in 

my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial period ended on 31st March, 2024 

complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board- processes 

and Compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 

by Punjab Logistics Infrastructure Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 

according to the provisions of: 

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 („SCRA‟) and the rules made there under; N.A 

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; N.A 

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of 

Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; N.A 

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 

(„SEBI Act‟):-N.A 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulation, 2011; 

N.A 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992; N.A 
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The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018. 

NA 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 NA 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase 

Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; N.A 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; N.A. 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 

regarding the Companies Act, and dealing with client; N.A 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; N.A. and 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; N.A. 

Compliances/ processes/ systems under other applicable Laws to the Company are being verified on the basis of 

periodic certificate submitted to the Board of Directors of the Company. 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to board and general 

meetings. 

The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited read with SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015. NA  

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts, Rules, Regulations, 

Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to following observations: 

Observations: 

I report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 

Directors, Non- Executive Directors. The changes in the composition of the board of Directors that took place 

during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.  

Mr. Hardeep Singh Juneja, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, whose appointment has been approved 

by the board members of the company in 45th Board meeting held on May 15, 2023. But the name of CFO has 

not been reflecting at Master Data of the company.  

We advise the company to take necessary action to update the master data of Ministry of Corporate affairs 

with the valid appointment of CFO.   

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 

were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 

clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 
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I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 

operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliances with rules, regulations and guidelines and 

Company is in process of reviewing & strengthening the same. 

For Gupta Shivali & Associates  

(Company Secretaries) 

 

Shivali Gupta 

M.No. 30617 

COP 11190 

UDIN- A30617F000324781 
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The Members 

My Report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

Maintenance of records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion 

on these records based on my observation. 

I have followed the process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of contents of records.  

I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company. 

Wherever required, I have obtained the management representation about compliance of rules and regulations. 

The Compliance of provisions of corporate laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management. My 

examination is limited to verification of procedures on test basis. 

For Gupta Shivali & Associates  

(Company Secretaries) 

 

Shivali Gupta 

M.No. 30617 

COP 11190 
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FORM NO. AOC -2 
 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

 
Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with 
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 
including certain arms length transaction under third proviso thereto. 
 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.  NIL 
 

SL. No. Particulars Details 
       1. Name (s) of the related party & nature of 

relationship. 
N.A. 

      2. Nature of 
contracts/arrangements/transaction 

N.A. 

       3. Duration of the 
contracts/arrangements/transaction 

N.A. 

      4. Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transaction including the 
value, if any 

N.A. 

       5. Justification for entering into such contracts 
or arrangements or transactions’ 

N.A. 

        6. Date of approval by the Board N.A. 
       7. Amount paid as advances, if any N.A. 
      8. Date on which the special resolution was 

passed in General meeting as required 
under first proviso to section 188 

N.A.  

 
2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis. 

 
SL. No. Particulars Details 

        1. Name (s) of the related party & nature 
of relationship 

1. Names of the related parties where control 
exists: 

(a) Container Corporation of India Limited (CONCOR): 
Promoter Company. 

(b) Punjab State Container & Warehousing 
Corporation Limited: Promoter Company. 

       Directors: 
(a) Sh. Mohammad Azhar Shams 
(b) Smt. Kanwal Preet Brar 
(c) Ms. Ritu Narang  
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Key Managerial Personnel  
(a) Mr. Ravi Kant (CEO) 
(b) Mr. Hardeep Singh (CFO) 
(c) Mr. Mayank Jain (CS) Till 09.02.2024  

      2. Nature of 
contracts/arrangements/transaction 

1. Transactions with subsidiary companies: NA 
2. Transactions with Holding Company and 

Company having significant influence: - 
(a)                                                                   

Name of 
company 

2024 (Rs. In 
thousands) 

2023 (Rs. In 
thousands) 

CONCOR 
Revenue from 
operations 
 
Exp Management 
fees for 
administrative 
services 

 
2,77,927 

 
 

10,925 

 
2,87,842 

 
 

10,769 
 
 

CONWARE 
 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 
   (b)                                                                      

Outstanding 
balance at the end 
of the year 

2024 (Rs.in 
thousands) 

2023 (Rs.in 
thousands) 

Trade receivables 
CONCOR  33,299 25,307 

CONWARE Nil Nil 
Long Term Borrowings 
CONCOR  2,55,000 51,000 
CONWARE 2,45,000 49,000 
Preference Share Dividend accrue but not due 
CONCOR  11823 5254 
CONWARE 11359 5048 

 
In thousands 

Details of 
transactions with Key 
Managerial Personnel  

2024 (Rs.) 2023 (Rs.) 

Sh. Ravi Kant CEO 
Sh. Vikram Pratap CEO  
Sh. Gaurav Soni CFO  
Sh. Mayank Jain CS 
Sh. Hardeep Singh 
CFO 

2743 
Nil 
Nil 
460 
905 

1494 
1243 
781 
510 
75 

Total 4108 4103 
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       3. Duration of the 

contracts/arrangements/transaction 
Ongoing 

      4. Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transaction including 
the value, if any 

N.A. 

       5. Date of approval by the Board  N.A. 
        6. Amount paid as advances, if any  N.A. 

  

 

 Date: 29 July, 2024                              For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Place: Ludhiana     

                 Director        Director 
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Annexure F to Directors  Report 
PARTICULARS RELATING TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 
 

 

(A) Conservation of energy- 
  
(i)  the steps taken or impact on conservation of 

energy; 
 
(ii) the steps taken by the company for utilizing 

alternate sources of energy; 
 

 
 
1. Solar Lights have been installed in the 

premises to save electricity. 
 
2. High mast LED lights have been 

installed in the yard of PLIL. 
 

(iii)  the capital investment on energy 
conservation equipment’s; 

 There was no capital investment on   
energy conservation equipment’s during 
the year. 

(B) Technology absorption- 
 
 (i)   the efforts made towards technology 

absorption; 
 
(ii) the benefits derived like product 

improvement, cost reduction, product 
development or import substitution; 

 
 
PLIL is engaged in the services of handling 
and transportation of containers through 
rail therefore no efforts are required 
towards the technology absorption during 
the year under review. 

(iii)  In case of imported technology (imported 
during the last three years reckoned from 
the beginning of the financial year)- 

 
(a) the details of technology imported; 
 
(b) the year of import; 
 
(c) whether the technology been fully 
absorbed; 
 
(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where 
absorption has not taken place, and the 
reasons thereof; and 

 
 
 
 
Nil  
 
Nil   
 
Nil   
 
 
Nil 

(iv)  The expenditure incurred on Research and 
Development. 

  

Nil 

(C) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo 
 
 
 

There were no foreign exchange earnings 
and outgo during the financial year 2023-
24. 
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PUNJAB LOGISTICS INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
(A Govt. of India Undertaking)

Regd. Office: S.C.O. 74-75, SECTOR 17-B, CHANDIGARH-160017
CIN: U63010CH2013GOI034873

Email id: plil.punjab@gmail.com

I

i CIN
ii Registration Date
iii Name of the Company
iv Category/Sub-category of the Company
v Address of the Registered office

 & contact details
vi Whether listed company
vii Name , Address & contact details of the Registrar  

& Transfer Agent, if any.

II

SL No Name & Description of  main products/services NIC Code of the 
Product /service

% to total turnover 
of the company

1 Transportation and Handling of containers (Rail and 
Road)

5221 100

III PARTICULARS OF HOLDING , SUBSIDIARY & 
ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sl No Name & Address of the Company CIN/GLN HOLDING/
SUBSIDIARY/
ASSOCIATE

% OF 
SHARES 
HELD

APPLICABLE 
SECTION

1 Container Corporation of India Ltd. L63011DL1988GOI030915            Holding 51
2 Punjab State Container and Warehousing Corp. Ltd. U63023CH1995SGC016299 Associate 49

The company is engaged and targeting to develop Logistics Hubs in the state of Punjab facilitating trade and industry of the state and 
putting them on International map.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

U63010CH2013GOI034873
16.12.2013

PUNJAB LOGISTICS INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

FORM NO. MGT 9

INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICE
S.C.O. 74-75, SECTOR 17-B ,CHANDIGARH-160017

No
N.A.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on financial year ended on 31.03.2024

Pursuant to  Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & Administration ) Rules,  2014.
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IV SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Share capital Break up as % to total capital)

Category of Shareholders

Equity Shares Preference Shares Total % of Total 
Shares

Equity Shares Preference 
Shares

Total % of Total 
Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian
a) Individual/HUF 5 5 5 5
b) Central Govt.or
 State Govt.
c) Bodies Corporates 199999995 10000000 209999995 100 199999995 50000000 249999995 100 Nil
d) Bank/FI
e) Any other

SUB TOTAL:(A) (1) 200000000 10000000 210000000 100 200000000 50000000 250000000 100 Nil

(2) Foreign
a) NRI- Individuals
b) Other Individuals
c) Bodies Corp.
d) Banks/FI
e) Any other…

SUB TOTAL (A) (2)

Total Shareholding of 
Promoter 
(A)= (A)(1)+(A)(2) 200000000 10000000 210000000 100 200000000 50000000 250000000 100 Nil

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % change during the 
year
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B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING

(1) Institutions
a) Mutual Funds
b) Banks/FI
C) Cenntral govt
d) State Govt.
e) Venture Capital Fund
f) Insurance Companies
g) FIIS
h) Foreign Venture
 Capital Funds
i) Others (specify)

SUB TOTAL (B)(1):

(2) Non Institutions
a) Bodies corporates
i) Indian
ii) Overseas
b) Individuals
i) Individual shareholders 
holding  nominal share 
capital upto Rs.1 lakhs
ii) Individuals shareholders 
holding nominal share 
capital in excess of Rs. 1 
lakhs
c) Others (specify)

SUB TOTAL (B)(2):

Total Public Shareholding
(B)= (B)(1)+(B)(2)

C. Shares held by Custodian 
for 
GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total (A+B+C) 200000000 10000000 210000000 100 200000000 50000000 250000000 100 Nil
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(ii) SHARE HOLDING OF PROMOTERS
Sl No. Shareholders Name % change 

in share 
holding 
during the 
year

No of Equity 
shares

No of 
Preference 
Shares

% of total 
shares
 of the 
company

% of shares 
pledged
 encumbered 
to total shares

No of 
Equity 
shares

No of 
Preference 
Shares

% of total 
shares
 of the 
company

% of 
shares 
pledged
 
encumbe1 Container Corporation of India Ltd. 102000000 5100000 51 0 102000000 25500000 51 0 0

2 Punjab State Container and Warehousing Corp. Ltd.98000000 4900000 49 0 98000000 24500000 49 0 0

3
Nominee of 1 & 2 above holding one 
share each 5 5

Total 200000000 10000000 100 200000000 50000000 100

(iii) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS' SHAREHOLDING ( SPECIFY IF THERE IS NO CHANGE)

Sl. No.

No. of Shares % of total 
shares of the 
company

No of shares % of total 
shares of the 
company

At the beginning of the year 210000000 100 210000000 100
Date wise increase/decrease in 
Promoters Share holding during the year 
specifying the reasons for 
increase/decrease (e.g. 
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity 
etc) 40000000 100 250000000 100
At the end of the year 250000000 100 250000000 100

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Direcors, Promoters & Holders of GDRs & ADRs)

Sl. No

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders No.of shares % of total 
shares of the 

company

No of shares % of total 
shares of the 

company

At the beginning of the year NIL NIL

Date wise increase/decrease in 
Promoters Share holding during the year 
specifying the reasons for 
increase/decrease (e.g. 
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity 
etc) NIL NIL

At the end of the year (or on the date of 
separation, if separated during the year) NIL NIL

(v) Shareholding of Nominee Directors & KMP

Sl. No

For Each of the Directors & KMP No.of shares % of total 
shares of the 

company

No of shares % of total 
shares of the 

company
At the beginning of the year : Nominee 
Directors hold only one Equity share 
each in the capacity of 
nominee/representative being 
appointed by Promter Companies. None 
of the KMP holds any Equity or 
prreference share. 5 5

Date wise increase/decrease in 
Promoters Share holding during the year 
specifying the reasons for 
increase/decrease (e.g. 
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity 
etc) Nil Nil
At the end of the year 5 5

Shareholding at the 
begginning of the year

Shareholding at the 
end of the year

Shareholding at the end of 
the year

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

Share holding at the 
beginning of the Year

Cumulative Share holding 
during the year

Shareholding at the end of 
the year

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year
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V INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans
 excluding deposits

Unsecured 
Loans

Deposits Total 
Indebtedness

i) Principal Amount 509090910 96873363 Nil 605964273
ii) Interest due but not paid Nil Nil Nil Nil
iii) Interest accrued but not due Nil Nil Nil Nil

Nil Nil
Total (i+ii+iii) 509090910 96873363 605964273

0 400328032 Nil 400328032
489018182 0 Nil 489018182

-489018182 400328032 Nil -88690150

20072728 497201395 Nil 517274123
ii) Interest due but not paid Nil Nil Nil
iii) Interest accrued but not due Nil Nil Nil

Nil Nil Nil
Total (i+ii+iii) 20072728 497201395 517274123

VI REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager: NIL

Sl.No Total Amount
1 Gross salary

Total (A)
Ceiling as per the Act

B. Remuneration to other directors: NIL
Sr.No Total Amount

1 Independent Directors

Nil Nil
(b) Commission
(c ) Others, please specify
Total (1)

2 Other Non Executive Directors Nil

(b) Commission
(c ) Others, please specify.
Total (2) Nil
Total (B)=(1+2)
Total Managerial Remuneration Nil

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Sr. No.
1 Gross Salary CEO Company 

Secretary
CFO Total

2742818 460058.00 905000.00 4107876.00
2 Others, please specify

Total 2742818 460058.00 905000.00 4107876.00
VII PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Type Section of 
the 
Companies 
Act

Brief 
Description

Details of 
Penalty/Punishmen
t/Compounding 
fees imposed

Authority 
(RD/NCLT/Co
urt)

Appeall made if any (give 
details)

Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

 
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Date:     For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Place: 

Mohammad Azhar Shams Ritu Narang
(DIN: 07627473) (DIN: 10044126)
Director Director

Change in Indebtedness during the 
financial year

Additions

(a) Salary as per provisions 
contained in Income Tax 
Act, 1961.

Others

Indebtedness at the end of the financial 
year

(a) Fee for attending board committee meetings

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Indebtness at the beginning of the 
financial year

(a) Fee for attending 
board committee meetings

Reduction

Name of the Directors

A.  COMPANY

B. DIRECTORS

Key Managerial Personnel

NIL

Net Change

Name of the MD/WTD/Manager

i) Principal Amount

Particulars of Remuneration 

(a) Salary as per provisions 
contained in Income Tax. 
1961.

Particulars of Remuneration

Particulars of Remuneration
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ROMESH K. AGGARWAL &ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Head Office - B-XV 797, G.T. Rood Miller Gonj, Ludhiono 747003
Phones: 2532920, 2534289.

REVISED INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of
PUNJAB LOGISTICS INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPINION

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of PUNTAB LOGISTICS
INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance

Sheet as at 3l"tMarch 2024, the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow

Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including

a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information on

that date annexed thereto (hereinafter referred to as'Ind AS Financial Statements').

This report, revised consequent upon observation of Comptroller of Auditor General
of India during the course of audit u/s 139(5) of the Companies Act 2013 ("the Act")
for the period from 01st April, 2023 to 31st March, 2024, supersedes our earlier
report dated 13th May,2024 uls L43 of Companies Act,2013.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standard prescribed under section 133 of the act read with the
Companies (Indian accounting standard) Rule 2015 as amended ("IND AS") and the
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 3l'tMarch 2024 and its financial performance (including other
comprehensive income), change in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on

that date.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)

specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in

accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
=rrrtit' arrirt6n.6 rl,a harro nhtainad ic crrffiricnt and annronriate to orovide a baSiS fOf

ffi
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our opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professiona! judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financia! statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Based on the circumstances and facts of the company and the audit, we have
determined that there are no key matters to communicate in our audit report.

Information Other than the Financia! Statements and Auditor's Report
Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Board's
Report including its annexure, Corporate Governance and Shareholders Information
but does not include the Financial Statements and our auditor's report there on. Our
Opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement in the Board Repoft, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to repoft in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section

134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation and

presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance (including other comprehensive income),

changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
(IND AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of

the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting

frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudenU and

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the

accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial

statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparinq the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
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related to going concern and using the going concern basis of' accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial

r0p0rtin0 procoss.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a materia! misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As paft of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
section 143(3Xi) of the Companies Act, 20L3, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company ha1 adequate internal
financial iontrols system in place and the operating effectiveness of such

controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policitls used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern

basis of accounting'and, based on the audit evidence obtained, a material

unceftainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant

doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we

conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention

in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements

or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. O-ur conclusions

are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's

report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
. finanaial clrlarnante ranracanl'
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presentation.

Materiality is the Magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic

decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may
be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in:

1. Planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and

2. To evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and signifir:ant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, relat,ed safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governitnce, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, w(3 determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Repoft on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 202.0 ("the Order"), as
amended, issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section
(11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure -A" a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which
to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessiary for the purpose
of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been
kept by the Company so far as it appears from our e;<amination of those
books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the cash flow statement and statement of
change in equity dealt with by this Report are in argreement with the
books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid IND AS financial^t|1,:T..lls comply with
43



(e)

(g)

(f)

(h)

As per the notification fumber G.S.R. 453(E) dated 5th June, 2015
issued by Ministry of Qorporate Affairs, section 164(2) of the Act
regarding the disqualifioations of Directors is not applicable to the
Company, since it is a Government Company,

With respect to adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls over financial
reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of siuch
controls, refer to our sepSrate repoft in"Annexure -8".

As per the notification number G.S.R. 463(E) dated 5th June, 2015
issued by Ministry of Qorporate Affairs, section 197(16) of the Act
regarding the Managerial Remuneration is not applicable to the
Company, since it is a GQvernment Company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's report
in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's)
Rules, 20t4 (as amendled), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company did not l'lave any pending litigations which impact its
financial position in its financial statements as on March 3L, 2024

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The management of the Company have represented to us that, to
the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are matr:rial
either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company or any of such subsidiaries or
jointly controlled entities to or in any other person or entity, inclu,Cing
foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company or any of :;uch
subsidiaries ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The management of the Company have represented to us that, to
the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material
either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company or any of such subsidiaries or jointly controlled entities I'rom
any person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company or any of such subsidiaries shall, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultirnate
Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances performed by us on the Company,

i.

ii.

iii.

tv.
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V,

vt.

representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided
under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

The company has not declared and paid any dividend during the year.
Therefore, reporting in this regard is not appricabre to the conipany.'

Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has
used an accounting software (Tally Prime Edit Log Gold) for maintaining
its books of accounts which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all
relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with. The audit trail has been preserved by the
company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

As required by section 143(5) of the Companies Act 2013, we give in
"Annexure -C", d statement on the matters specified in the direction
issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, and in our
opinion, no action is required to be taken thereon and there is no impact
on accounts and financial position of the company.

(i)

For Romesh K Aggarwal & Associates

Partner
M. No.542271
Place - Ludhiana

Dated - 09.08.2024

UDIN - 2454227 1 BKEXLN 5299

Chartered Accou
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Annexure "A" to the Revised Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to paragraph-l under the'Repoft on other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements section of our Independent Auditor's Repoft to the members
of Punjab Logistics Infrastructure Limited on the financial statements for
the year ended on March 3\ 2tJ24)

I. In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible
Assets:

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and
Equipment.

(B) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars
of intangible assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the
management at reasonable intervals. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) The company does not hold any immovable assets in its name.

The company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the
year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending
against the company as at March 31, 2024 for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder.

II. (a) Inventories have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals during the year. In our opinion, the procedures of
physical verification of inventories followed by the management are
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and the
nature of its business. No material discrepancies were noticed during such

verification.

(b) The company has not availed any working capital limits from the banks or
financial institutions.

III. The Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act').

ry. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has

not given any loans, made investments, given guarantee or securities during

the year under the provisions of section 185 and 186, therefore provision of

this clause is not applicable to company.

(d)
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v. The Company has not accepted any deposits or deemed deposits from the
public within the meaning of directives issued by Reserve bank of India and
hence provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provision of the
Act and rules framed thereunder with regard to the deposits accepted from
the public are not applicable to the company.

The company is not required to maintain the cost records prescribed by the
central government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act.

a) According to the records of the Company, the Company is generally regular
in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees'
state insuranCe, inCOme-tax, Sales-tax, Service tax, goOds and Service tax
wealth tax, duty of customs, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues
applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. There were no undisputed
outstanding statutory dues as at the year-end for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company there are no material dues
of wealth tax, duty of customs, income tax, Sales Tax, service Tax, Value

Added Tax, Goods and Service Tax and cess which have not been deposited
with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanation given to uS, there were no

transactions which have not recorded in the books of account, have been

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). Therefore, provisions of clause
3(viii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(a) The company has not taken any loans or other borrowings from any

tenOer. Thereiore, provisions of clause 3(ixXa) of the Order are not applicable
to the company.

(b) The Company has not been declared as willful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year, however there
'rs an opening baiance of term loan as on 01.04.2023 is Rs.50.90 Crores and

closing balance of term loan as on 31.03.2024 is Rs.2.01 Crores.

(d) On an overall examination of financial statements of the company, funds

have nOt been raised on short-term basis. Hence, reporting under clause

3(ixXd) of the order is not applicable.

(e) The company has not taken any funds from any entities or person on

ictount of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint

ventures.

(f) The company has not raised loan during the year on the pledge of

securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates companies.

a) The company has not raised any money by-way of Initial public offer or

i,j'tn.. public offer (includins q"P,]i'..1:r::j:) o"T.n""Tt"I:,il;#"fittr,.'?

vr.

VII.

vIII.

il.
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b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally
convertible) during the year. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xXb) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

XI. a) No fraud has been noticed or reported on or by the company during the
year.

b) No report under sub-section (12) of Section L43 of the Companies Act has
been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2OL4 with the Centrial Government.

c) As per the information and explanations given to us, no whistle-blower
complaints have been received by the company during the )lear.

XII. The Company is not a Nidhi Compdny, accordingly paragraph 3 (xii) of the
Order is not applicable to the company.

XIII. All transactions with related pafties are in compliance with sections L77 and
188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details of such
transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by
the applicable accounting standards.

XIV. a) The company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

b) The reports of the Internal Auditors for the year under audit have been
considered by us.

XV. The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with its director during the year.

XVI. a) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xvi)(a)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Firrancial or Housing
Finance activities during the year. Therefore, the provisions of clause
3(xvi)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

c) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Therefore, the provisions of
clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

d) According to the representations given by the managernent, the company
has no CIC as part of the GrouP.

XVII. The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the
immediately preceding financial year. Therefore, the provisions of clause
3(xvii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

XVIII. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and

accordingly this clause is not applicable.

yry Aecardinn to the information and exolanations oiven to us and on the basis of
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xx.

xxr.

assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and

management plans and based on our examination of the e'ridence supporting
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, wlnich causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and ute neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged try the Company as
and when they fall due.

a) The Schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso

to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act is not applicabler to the company.

The company is having only standalone financial statements, therefore, the
provisions of clause 3(xxi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For Romesh K Aggarwal & Associates

Chartered Accountants

M. No.542271
Place - Ludhiana

Dated - 09,08.2024

UDIN - 2454227 1 BKEXLN 5299
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Annexure - B to the Revised Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to Paragraph - 2(f) under the "Report on other Lregat and
Regulatory Requirements section of our Independent Auditrors' Report to
the members of Punjab Logistics Infrastructure Limited on the financial
statements for the year ended on March 3L,2(J24)

Report on the Internal Financial Controts under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2O13 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial rep,orting of PUNJAB
LOGISTICS INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED ("the Company") as of 3l't March 2024
in conjunction with our audit of the IND AS financial statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date,

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls;

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and nraintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components; of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Cont,rols over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the tirnely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies AcE, 2013.

Aud itor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's; internal financial
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in

accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on ,Auditing, issued by
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
20t3, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal finanr:ial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guirlance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal finarncial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on

the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error. 50



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financia! controls
system over financial reporting

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of finarrcial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that :-

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are rec<lrded as necessary
to permit preparation of financial statements in accordernce with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and erxpenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, u$e, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper manatlement override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of cornpliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internill financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Romesh K Aggarwal & Associates

Place - Ludhiana

Dated - 09.08.2024
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Anngxure "C" to

(Referred to paragraph-3 under th
Requirements section of our Inde;
of Punjab Logistics Infrastructure
the year ended on March 3Lt 2024

the Independent Auditorrs Report

r'Report on other Legal and Regulatory
endent Auditors' Report lLo the members
.imited on the financial statements for

s.
No.

Direction u/s f43(5) of
the Companies Act,
2013

Auditor's reply on action
taken on the directions

Impact on
financial
statement

1 Whether the Company
has system in place to
process all the accounting
transactions through IT
system? If y€s, the
implications of processing

of accounting
transactions outside IT
system on the integritY of
the accounts along with
the financial implications,
if any, may be stated.

I

The company has system in 
t

place to process all tlre I

accounting transactiorrs
through IT system. Tlre
operational entries of tlre
company like revenue,
customer ledger accounts etr:.,

have been recorded in Tally
Prime Edit Log Gold. The

company accounts arrd
payments are maintained in

Tally Prime Edit Log Gold. The
income generated throu gh

Commercial software is

transferred to accounting
software through seParatte

entries at monthlY intervals.
However, the comPanY has

adequate internal control and

audit systems to verifY
correctness of the entries

collated and posted in TerllY

Prime Edit Log Gold.

Based on the audit Procedure

I carried out and as Per the

I information and exPlanations

I given to US, no accounting

I transactions have beren

I pro."rr.d/carried outside l:he

I IT system. AccordinglY, th,ere

| .t. no implications on l:he

I integrity of the accounts' _

Nil

52



2 Whether there is any
restructuring of an
existing loan or cases of
waiver / write off of
debts/ loans / interest
etc. made by a lender to
the company due to the
company's inability to
repay the loan? If y€s,
the financial impact may
be stated. Whether such
cases are properly
accounted for? (In case,
lender is a Government
Company, then
direction is

his

also
applicable for statutory
auditor of lender
company).

According to the information
and explanation given to us
and based on our examination
of records of the company,
there has been no
restructuring of an
existing loan or cases of
waiver / write off debts / loans

/ interest etc. made by a

lender to the company due to
the company's inability to
repay the loan. Further, no
loan has been availed during
the FY 2023-24.

Nil

3 Whether funds (grants /
subsidy etc.) received I
receivable for specific
schemes from Central I
State Government or its
agencies were properly
accounted for / utilized as
per its term and
conditions? List the cases

of deviation.

Based on the information and
explanation given to US, the
company has not received
(grant/subsidy etc.) towards
any specific scheme from
Central/ State government or
its agencies by the company
during the flnancial year 2023-
24.

Nil

Chartered Accountants
For Romesh K Aggarwal & Associates

M. No.54227L

Place - Ludhiana

Dated - 09.08.2024
53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



.".1,.'t\',
.(.PrL
->l)444

iitni'rEl €'d"er
Dodcat€d to Trub h Plilc nt€resi

rafitcro MqltETErqt{q
HsrFrqo,T€ffi

c/o l{Rir S ftri*r' Bftr c-6r+{fl qfrail-fi

Office of the Director General of Audlt
Rallway Commerclal, New Delhi

C/o Comptroller and Audltor General of hdla
+. t+eqfo sqlql.{I q[rf. +$ R.d l. I)een I)a1al I ipadhl ala \4arg. Nc\ Delhi-l 10001

+dri,

f{tqr6,
qqrdffiENgmq€{frfr}s,
cs$m 7a-75 $6t rz fr,

"idrq 160017

31 srd zoza fr sqrq Ed b frS riqrE ffqfu €ffiqffi ftfrrk +
ffiq ffi qr ffi oilUfiffi zorr qi URI 143 teXu) t .lia{a +nrc t
frdxoEiwrMroottuMl

fi, riqn ffikw €mtqfi{ ftfras fi zt qd zozqol qclq E{ e ffi
ft-+tuil qt d;q-fr sd}Fqq zorE dfi ERI 143 tol lut &' eia.fa rnra & ftiT6 \rd

rorffieffi 61 ftqFrqf rdfud 6t {6T E I

eqr {s qd 01 €dfl -sl strd urfr o1 qTE-fr ll-fr ilq
lf{&q,

€dfr:qfrq0

tsY.
rofrtqro tH

{aqTa n

c-frdq

frqq

E{i6?a os.2o2a

88



COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INOIA UNDER SECTION 143 (6)

(b) oF THE COMPAN|ES ACT, 2013 ON THE FtNANCtAt- STATEMENTS OF pUNtAB t OG|STICS

INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024.

The preparation of financial statements of Punjab Logistics lnfrastructure Limited for the

year ended 31 March 2024 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under

the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the Company. The

Statutory Auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of tndia under Section 139 (5)

of the Act is responsible for expressinB opinion on the financial statements under Section 143 of

the Act based on independent audit in accordance with th€ standards on auditing prescribed under

Section 143(10)ofthe Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Revised Audit Report

dated 09 August 2024, which supersedes their earlier Audit Report dated 13 May 2024.

l, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of lndia, have conducted a

supplementary audit ofthe financialstatements of Punjab togistics lnfrastructure Limited forthe

year ended 31 March 2024 under Section 143(6)(a) ofthe Act. This supplementary audit has been

carried out independently without access to the working papers of the Statutory Auditor and is

limited primarily to inquiries of the Statutory Auditor and company personnel and a selective

examination of some ofthe accounting records. The Audit Report has been revised by the statutory

auditor to give effect to some of my audit observations raised during supplementary audit.

ln addition, I would like to highlight the following significant matters under section

143(6)(b) of the Act which have come to my attention and which in my view are necessary for

enabling a better understanding ofthe financial statements and the related audit report:

A. Comments on Cash Flow

a, Statement of Carh Flows as at March 31, ZO24

Cash Flow from Operating Activities - < 8,070 thousand

Cash Flow from FinancinS Activities - (t79,510 thousand)

The 'Cash Flow from Operating Activities, included 143,563 thousand being repayment of
borrowings which should have been shown under'cash Flow from Financing Activities, as required

under Para 17 of lnd AS 7.
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This had resulted into understatement of'cash Flow from Operating Activities by {43,563

thousand and overstatement of 'Cash Flow from Financing Adivities' by the same amount.

For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Placer New Delhi
Dated:3r.08,2024

Director ofAudit
Railway commercial, New Delhi

Dr
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ADDENDUM TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR FY 2023-24 
Para 

Reference 
Comments of the C&AG of India 
u/s 143(6)(b) of the Companies  
Act, 2013 on the Standalone Financial 
Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 

Reply of the Management 

A Comments on Cash Flow 

Statement of Cash Flows as at March 31, 

2024 

Cash Flow from Operating Activities – 

Rs.78070 thousand 

Cash Flow from Financing Activities – 

(Rs.79510 thousand): 

 

The company has shown repayment of 

Borrowings of 143563 thousand during 

FY 2023-24 as 'Cash Flow from Operating 

Activities' instead of showing it as 'Cash 

Flow from Financing Activities'. As 

repayments of the borrowed amount is a 

financing activity, therefore, the same is 

in violation of Para 17 of lnd A5-7. 

This has resulted in understatement of' 

Cash Flow from Operating Activities' by 

Rs.43563 thousand and overstatement of' 

Cash Flow from Financing Activities' to 

the same extent. 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
In reference to the comments issued 
by CAG for the FY 23-24, kind 
attention of audit is invited to the 
fact that as per the guidance notes 
issued by Institute of Chartered 
accountant of India (ICAI) on 
schedule III regarding the 
classification of the heads, it is 
mentioned that financial liabilities 
under the head Current Liabilities 
includes (i) Borrowings, (ii) Lease 
liabilities, (iii) Trade payables (iv) 
Other financial liabilities. The 
borrowings which are due to be paid 
in the span of 12 months are shows 
as short-term borrowings under 
Financial Liabilities. 
 
Therefore, while calculating the 
changes in working capital for the 
cash flow from operating activities, 
the changes in short term 
borrowings is taken into account as 
the same has been classified under 
current liabilities. 
 
As per the observation of the audit 
team, the decrease in short term 
borrowing is to be shown under the 
heading cash flow from financing 
activities. As the current treatment 
does not affect the final result of the 
cash flow statement as the same is 
compensatory in nature. However, it 
is taken into account and the same 
will be duly incorporated in 
Financing activities in the cash flow 
of next financial year. 
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